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1. Introduction

Debbie Whelan of Archaic Consulting was contacted by Mr. Robin Archer from Huntsman
Tioxide regarding the proposed demolition of two concrete partially subterranean bunkers on
the old Kynoch Explosives factory site at Umbogintiwni. These two bunkers dated from the
Second World War. They are mostly buried with a convex reinforced concrete roof structure
which is currently covered with corrugated sheeting. It is possible that these would have been
invisible from the air and could have functioned as air raid shelters. Their exact role is not at
this point known, although others on the site are known to have stored ammunition that was
subsequently deployed at the Front, and they have certain diagnostic features to suggest this.
Together, they form part of a suite of wartime structures, associated with defence and attack.
I n this report, they shalll be referred to simply
ammunition bunkers which have different features.

This report is prepared at a time when all the Natal Coastal Defenses are being assessed and
itemized, and relies in some part for resolution of the unanswered questions to be points of
departure for this historical study.

2. Methodology

Debbie Whelan visited the site together with Mr. Archer on 3 June 2011. The actual bunkers
lie in a hollow which is lined with indigenous bush to the east, and factory development to the
west. They are situated in an open field of wild sugar cane and scrub, which had been
recently cut at the time of the visit. Both bunkers were inspected, as well as some other
structures on the site which had been constructed in the 1960s, according to Mr. Archer.
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Flg 1 Swmg site of bunkers relative to main factory complex.

At the outset, Archaic Consulting was made to understand that these were ammunition
bunkers. However, when previous reports on specific and similar issues were used as
reference and context, it was discovered that this may not have been so. Dr Graham
Domi ny 0 s(1995k@ro r ttammunition b u n k e r suded as & primary reference. This
document discussed much larger mono-pitch roofed structures which had windows, and a
different architectural language to the two bunkers in question (see Fig 2). Despite
consultation, no further information on the relationship between the two types was found. A
list of military specialists who were contacted for assistance in identification is found at the
end of this report.



Inaddition to Dr BiowlbonoyghGs rre@roaodgalirg pyith the military
defences in this area in World War Il was also used (ca 1997). A third report compiled by
Rocco Bosman on Modderfontein Village (2010) fleshed out the national context. Note that
the latter contains detailed descriptions of the relationship between Modderfontein and the
Kynoch factory in Umbogintwini, and any interested party should revert to this for elucidation.
The intention of this report is to focus as much as possible on the buildings at hand.

These primary sources were supplemented by an internet search, a scrutiny of the
documents available in the Pietermaritzburg Archives Repository (Note that Dr Dominy
scrutinized documents in the National Archives Repository as part of his 1995 Report) as well
as other published works on Kynoch, AECI and the Royal Navy Armaments Depots.

3. History of site

The development of explosive manufacture on this site commenced in 1909, when George
Kynoch, of the well-known Birmingham firm and opposition to Alfred Nobel, was granted a site
at the edge of the Umlazi Native Location. The focus of explosives manufacture at this time
was the mining operations on the Witwatersrand, and the intention of this new Kynoch factory
was to feed into this operation. Many of the original staff members were imported from
Arklow, and some continued to work at the factory for a number of generations. Relations
between the Kynoch Company and South Africa had been in existence for a number of years.

The acreage awarded to Kynoch was expropriated from a section of the Umlazi Location, thus
the Natal Native Trust played a pivotal role in negotiations. The power of the industry in
prompting the Government to requisition such land was thus massive. In return, still open
Crown Lands along the Umkomaas were transferred to Natal Native Trust. The people living
on these lands were few, but those kraals that were there were moved and compensated.

Initially there were a number of accidents. In 1910 an archival source notes of an explosion at
the new factory (CSO 1883 1910/30). This was eventually published in the Natal Government
Gazette in January 1910. Then, in 1913, an official investigation by the Union Government
found that, 6 O nRuropean and one native were killed by the explosion. The explosive, in
course of manufacture consisted of nitroglycerin (82.4 per cent.), nitrocotton (5.6), sodium
nitrate (8), and potassium nitrate (4 per cent.). There were 1000 Ib. of explosive in the
building, and, of this, probably 750 Ib. were in the porch, and 250 Ib. in a McRoberts'
kneading machine. At the site of the kneading machine a crater 15ft. in diameter and 3ft.
deep, was formed, while at the site of the porch the crater was 22 f t. in diameter and 6 ft. 6
in. deep. The first explosion probably occurred in the porch from a blow on a thin film of the
explosive caused either by dropping a full box, or setting a box down roughly after emptying it,
or by a blow on the edge of the pan whilst emptying a box, or by the sudden breaking of a
pulley and the broken portion striking the explosive. --G. W. McD@&. The Umbogintwini factory
ceased to produce munitions, and concentrated on the production of chemicals and fertilizer.
Even during the war, their task was the production of super-phosphates which were in high
demand (Cartwright 212)

Labour was an issue. Initially much of the workforce was Irish, imported from abroad. Position
at the edge of the Location may have been strategic, although the author has not found any
direct reference to this. Certainly, following the recommendations of Colonel Friend Addison,
who was proposing internships for young African boys, Mr Udal, the manager of the Kynoch
factory aggressively pursued this avenue, where young boys of 15 years old would enter into
a five year apprenticeship with the factory, being housed and fed and paid. The salary would
start at 12/- per month, culminating in 16/- per month at the end of the internship. It is well-
known that this factory was eventually merged into the ICI Group in the 1920s.

! Accident which occurred in No. 47, a mixing or kneading house, at the, explosives works of
Messrs. Kynoch, LId., Umbogintwini, Durban, Natal, on Aug. 21, 1913 - Report on an ----- ,
Major A. B. Denne, Chief Inspector of Explosives, Union of South Africa. [U.G. 49-'13.]

In: Journal of the Society of Chemical Industry No. 24, Vol. XXXII December 31, 1913
(www.freepyroinfo.com/Pyrotechnic/.../Explosion_Long_File.rtf)
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4. History of other bunkers on site

Certainly, there is no evidence of any construction in this area on the 1937 aerials. All
recorded evidence of wartime construction located thus far dates back to 1942.

Dr. Dominy records that the flotilla of now demolished mono-pitched ammunition bunkers
which were located in the field to the west of the bunkers in question were constructed in
1942.2 Their construction was as a result of increased operations in the Far East and the
Indian Ocean (Dominy 1995:7). Whilst the officially sanctioned site at Ganspan was being
constructed, intensified wartime operations meant that more shelters had to be constructed
and at the end of 1942 the AE&CI Umbogintwini property was identified as a site for the Royal
Navy Armaments Depot.

Dominy notes this sequestration as being 670 acres on AE& CI Land, which already had an

existing sugar lease to lllovo Sugar. The Admiralty paid £1000 to AE&CI as compensation.

The construction of these bunkers commenced, reaching completion in August of 1943

(Ibid:7). Dominy recordedt hat 6éThere were 104 structures in the
Mi ne De p o tlbid:5h Holv9n&ny @f thie substantial number remain is unknown.

(3.
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Fig 2: One of the two remaining ammunition bunkers on the Huntsman Tioxide site.

Most of these ammunition bunkers, save for two examples, were demolished to make way for
the development of the Southgate Industrial Park development in 1995. The two remaining
ammunition bunkers are located on the Huntsman site and are currently in reasonable
condition and used for storage.

The two bunkers that form the focus of this study differ from the above examples, structurally,

physically and architecturally. It is suspected that they form part of the suite of wartime

developments but that rather belonging to the corpus of defensive structures of the RNAD,

they were developments by AE&CI for their factory employees. Cartwright reinforces the fact

that they possibly could have been bomb shelters, sayingthat6 The f actori es at Umboog
and Somerset West made heroic efforts to conceal their existence, but anyone who has ever

tried to 6black outd factories that are working at
one of the veterans who did his best in 1940, is like trying to make ice cream in  hel | &
(Cartwright: 1964: 211).

% This statement is reinforced by a comment in Martin and Orpen (1979: 214).



5. Assessment of structures

The two bunkers under consideration are reinforced concrete structures. The bunker to the
north is intact, though badly cracked, and the bunker to the south is roofless and has been for
some time judging by the size of the fig trees that have made it their home. Both are sunk into
the ground, providing a blast-wall. The one end is open and has a set of double steel doors.
The convex concrete roof has extra support with a series of reinforced concrete brackets. The
top of the roof is covered with a ribbed sheeting, most of which is obscured due to dense
vegetation. The north bunker may have had a ventilation opening in the northern end, which
has since been bricked in.

51 Northern bunker
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Fig 4: Showing patching on the interiorwalls of the northern bunker



Fig'5: Interior of Northern bunker

Fig 6: Roofscape of Northern bunker



